

Riverside County Works 501(C)3

Zoom Online Video/Audio Conference **Meeting ID:** 943 0792 1319 **Passcode:** 92507

Online: https://zoom.us/j/94307921319?pwd=RkMrZlhKckFsaGNLb0RFdVVod1JoQT09

Phone: (888) 788-0099 or (877) 853-5247 **One tap mobile:** +16699009128,,94307921319#

Board of Directors Virtual Committee Meeting

April 21, 2021 9:30 a.m. - 10:30 a.m.

Participants are advised that by engaging in meeting telephonically or electronically they acknowledge that input may be recorded, such recording is subject to inspection pursuant to the California Public Records Act.

RivCo Works 501 (c)(3) Page 1 of 22

Riverside County Works 501(c)(3)



Riverside Workforce Development Center 1325 Spruce Street, Room 4A - Riverside, CA

Meeting Agenda

April 21, 2021 9:30 a.m. – 10:30 a.m.

I WELCOME

A. Call to Order Patrick Ellis

II ACTION ITEMS

A. Approve the minutes from Oct. 21, 2020 All

IV DISCUSSION ITEM

A. Review/Update Bylaws

B. Youth Entrepreneur Update

C. Fundraising & Strategic Planning

All

Leslie Trainor

Leslie Trainor

V PUBLIC COMMENTS

RivCo Works 501 (c)(3) Page 2 of 22

The WIOA Title I financially assisted program or activity is an equal opportunity employer/program. Auxiliary aids and services are available upon request to individuals with disabilities. Please call 951.955.3100, 951.955.3744 TTY, CA Relay 711, or ADACoordinator@rivcoeda.org 5 to 7 days in advance.

PUBLIC NOTICE

While the WDB Meetings are open to the public, time constraints limit the WDB's ability to permit open discussions with members of the audience. Persons requesting to address the WDB on matters not on the agenda but are within the jurisdiction of the WDB should do so under the agenda item <u>Public Comments</u>. Persons requesting to address the WDB on an agenda item should register with staff prior to the meeting. The Chair will impose a 3-minute time limit on all speakers addressing the WDB.

NON-EXEMPT MATERIALS

Non-exempt materials related to an item on this agenda submitted to the Workforce Development Board after distribution of the agenda packet are available for public inspection on the Riverside County Economic Development Agency Workforce Division's website at www.rivcoeda.com.

POSTED MATERIALS

Such documents are also available on the Riverside County Economic Development Agency Board Division's website at www.rivcoeda.com subject to staff's ability to post the documents before the meeting.

RivCo Works 501 (c)(3) Page 3 of 22

Jamil Dada WDB Chairperson

Carrie Harmon WDB Executive Director



Patrick Ellis WDB Vice Chairperson

Leslie Trainor WDB Deputy Director

RiversideCountyWorks October 21, 2020

WDB Chairperson Jamil Dada called the meeting to order at 10:35 a.m.

	<u>Membe</u>	ers in Attendance	
Jamil Dada	Mary Jo Ramirez	Patrick Ellis	Morris Myers
	<u>Mer</u>	mbers Absent	
		<u>Guests</u>	
		<u>Staff</u>	
Heidi Marshall	Carrie Harmon	Leslie Trainor	Tammy Mathis
Jasmine Guerrero	Loren Sims	Carolina Garcia	Rilla Jacobs

Administrative Item: I. Approve August 21, 2020, Meeting Minutes									
Motion: Approve the August 21, 2020, meeting minutes									
Moved by	Patrick	Ellis	Second by		Morris Myers	Absta	in		None
Vote	Aye	4		No	0 Abstain 0				
Status	Approv	ved .							

Discussion	Item:			
	Discussion			
Leslie Trainor	2019/2020 Annual Report – As a California corporation by law each year staff must present the Board of Directors (BOD) with an annual report. The report ensures the BOD is up-to-date and being included in the general activities of the corporation, the financial stability of the corporation, and the BOD is aware of any armslength transactions that may occur during the year.			
	We update the template each year to present the year's accomplishments. This year is July 1, 2019 - June 30, 2020. Leslie went over the report's amounts of funding raised throughout the year and the expenditures. We use this report provided for our financial updates at our meetings. Leslie went over the insurance coverage for the board.			
Leslie Trainor	Youth Entrepreneur Report – At the RivCoWorks board meeting on August 19, 2020, the group brainstormed on initiatives that they were interested in and wanted to pursue. They determined creating and implementing a youth entrepreneurship program would be their focus. Staff was tasked to get the program started.			
	Several meetings were held to determine the framework. Leslie presented the board with a report of ideas the group came up with:			
	 Participants will be youth and young adults from 16 – 24 years old. Must be Riverside County residents. 			
	Youth from WIOA programs.Focus on disconnected youth.			
	 Recruit youth from YOCs Foster Care service providers, charter school, continuation schools, and nonprofits, CBOs and service providers of adult living in households with youth and young adults. 			
	The Riverside Library Systems wants to be involved.			
	Activities:			
	Business financial literacy Use GoVenture Platform			

RivCo Works 501 (c)(3) Page 4 of 22

- 3. Develop a business plan
- 4. Develop an elevator pitch
- 5. Connect youth with a chamber of commerce
- 6. Connect to SBA and SBDC to mentor new entrepreneurs
- 7. Refer WIOA eligible youth back to the YOC

Business Finical Literacy:

- SBDC network resources
- Bank of America program
- Wells Fargo Program
- Youth.handsonbanking.org
- Wellsfargoworks.com for small business resources
- BankOn

Outcomes/accomplishments for youth who go through the program:

- Participants will feel empowered
- Receive hands-on experience
- Develop business plan and elevator pitch
- Establish percentage goals
- Create fastpitch competition
- See a percentage of participants start their own business
- Identify seed funding

Potential Funding Sources:

- WIOA possibly pay for staff time or supportive services
- Leveraging local banks needing CRA points
- Private foundations/community fundraisers to fundraise seed funding for participants
- Find matching funds
- In-kind funding (economic development department is interested in partnering)
 - o Library system, use of space, computers, internet access, help recruit

Recommended Next Steps:

- Continue conversations with County Business and Community Services Department
- Meet with Mike Stull from California State University San Bernardino, School of Entrepreneurship
- Invite Rosibel Ochoa, University of California, Riverside
- Leverage formal entrepreneurship training programs already in existence to see if they can be put on our eligible provider list.
- Test pilot on a small scale with Temecula/Wildomar Chamber.

Leslie asked for feedback from the committee.

Jamil agreed with having the participants test pilot the program with Temecula Chamber

Patrick had some questions and suggestions:

What is the target age group for the program? 16 - 24 years old

He suggested staff look at high school and middle schools to setup early youth connections

The pitch contest idea is very good. We can incorporate it into our Chamber programs.

Discussions with funding sources. He suggested talking with Rosibel to see if we can add into their conversations what we are doing with youth.

Morris agreed with Patrick's suggestions re: middle and high schools, but there may be difficulties with our many school districts and how to get everyone together. He sees how our at-risk youth can benefit from having other youth involved in the program and interacting with them.

Mary Jo commented on the Angel fund and agreed it was a good idea. She suggested connecting with Timothy Jackson with Mind and Mill as a good group to work with in the private sector. Their focus is on how to get ideas funded and taking ideas and making them bigger. She also agreed with Patrick on involving the middle schools as way to grow entrepreneurship at an early age. We receive many young people at the YOCs who have completed school, but have no idea what they want to do, and this could be a pathway for them to follow. Leslie suggested having youth who are almost through our proposed program reach out to the middle school youth. Patrick informed everyone that today's small business owners are looking to hire people with entrepreneurial mind sets. We may want to tap into the virtual enterprise programs in the districts who have it. It teaches all aspects of being an entrepreneur.

RivCo Works 501 (c)(3) Page 5 of 22

Morris asked, when the completion to the program is. He suggested the youth who complete this program could be mentors to the incoming youth. Leslie said more discussions will be held on when the completion would be. She presented pros and cons to having a definite completion date. Morris suggested having completions steps versus a completion date. Mary Jo agreed with having steps and the mentoring idea. Patrick also agreed with the mentor idea. He also suggested looking into a pilot program he read about that provided stipends to its students so they could focus on the program and have funds available for necessary needs. This is a long-term idea for discussions if the program is successful. Morris suggested adding a budgeting component to the program if stipends are incorporated in at a later time. Mary Jo suggested having the program vetted through the foster care system for the foster youth population.

Reports:			
Chairperson's Report			
Jamil Dada	Thanked staff for the brochure they created for the 501(c)(3) members to pass out. He has spoken with all the Riverside Congressional members and they expressed disappointment in not having the Youth Advocacy group visit them. Jamil encouraged everyone to make sure the youth trip is on schedule for 2021.		

Public Comments			
None			

Adjourned: 11:20 a.m.

RivCo Works 501 (c)(3) Page 6 of 22

AMENDED AND RESTATED BYLAWS OF

Riverside County Works

A California Nonprofit Public Benefit Corporation As of November 20, 2017

ARTICLE 1

NAME

Section 1.1

Corporate Name

The official name of this corporation is Riverside County Works ("Corporation").

ARTICLE 2

OFFICES

Section 2.1

Principal Office

The principal office for the transaction of the activities and affairs of the Corporation is located at 1325 Spruce Street, Suite 400 in Riverside, California 92507. The location of the principal office may be changed by resolution of the Corporation's Board of Directors ("Board") from one location to another within the County of Riverside.

Section 2.2

Other Offices

The Board may, at any time, establish branch or subordinate offices at any place or places where the Corporation is qualified to conduct its activities.

ARTICLE 3

PURPOSES

Section 3.1

General Purpose

This corporation is a Nonprofit Public Benefit Corporation and is not organized for the private gain of any person. It is organized under the Nonprofit Corporation Law of California ("California Nonprofit Corporation Law") for public and charitable purposes.

Section 3.2

Specific Purposes

The specific purpose of this Corporation is primarily to support and promote the Riverside County workforce development system as a means of promoting the common good and general welfare of the people of the State of California. Additionally, this Corporation may engage in any activities that are reasonably related to or in furtherance of its stated public and charitable purposes, or in any other charitable activities as allowed by law.

ARTICLE 4

LIMITATIONS

Section 4.1

Political Activities

The Corporation has been formed under the California Nonprofit Corporation Law and is organized and operated exclusively for charitable purposes within the meaning of Section 501 (c) (3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as

Updated 11/20/2017

Page 1 of 16

s:\department\housing\wdcs non-profit\bylaws\bylaws- amended and restated 11-20-17.docx

amended ("Internal Revenue Code"). The Corporation shall be nonprofit and non-partisan. No substantial part of the activities of the Corporation shall consist of carrying on propaganda, or otherwise attempting to influence legislation, and the Corporation shall not participate in or intervene in any political campaign (including the publishing or distribution of statements) on behalf of, or in opposition to, any candidate for public office.

Section 4.2 <u>Prohibited Activities</u>

The Corporation shall not, except in any insubstantial degree, engage in any activities or exercise any powers that are not in furtherance of the purposes described in Article 3. The Corporation may not carry on any activity for the profit of its Officers, Directors or other persons or distribute any gains, profits or dividends to its Officers, Directors or other person as such. Furthermore, nothing in Article 3 shall be construed as allowing the Corporation to engage in any activity not permitted to be carried on:

- 1. By a corporation exempt from federal income tax under Section 501(c) (3) of the Internal Revenue Code.
- 2. By a corporation, contributions to which are deductible under Section 170 (c) (2) of the Internal Revenue Code.

ARTICLE 5 DEDICATION OF ASSETS

Section 5.1 Pr

Property Dedicated to Nonprofit Purposes

The property of the Corporation is irrevocably dedicated to charitable purposes within the meaning of Section 501 (c) (3) of the Internal Revenue Code. No part of the net income or assets of the Corporation shall ever inure to the benefit of any of its Directors or Officers or to the benefit of any private person, except that the Corporation is authorized and empowered to pay reasonable compensation for services rendered and to make payments and distributions in furtherance of the purposes set forth in Article 3 hereof.

Section 5.2 <u>Distribution of Assets upon Dissolution</u>

Upon the dissolution or winding up of this Corporation, its assets remaining after payment, or provision for payment, of all debts and liabilities of this Corporation shall be distributed to a nonprofit fund, foundation, or corporation which is organized and operated exclusively for charitable purposes and which has established its tax exempt status under Section 501 (c) (3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.

ARTICLE 6 MEMBERSHIPS

This Corporation shall have no members within the meaning of Section 5056 of the California Nonprofit Corporation Law. Any action of this Corporation which would otherwise require approval by a majority of members or

Updated 11/20/2017

Page 2 of 16

s:\department\housing\wdcs non-profit\bylaws\bylaws- amended and restated 11-20-17.docx

approval by the members, shall require only approval of the Board, any provision of the Bylaws to the contrary notwithstanding. All rights that would otherwise vest in the members shall vest in the Board.

ARTICLE 7 DIRECTORS

Section 7.1

Corporate Powers Exercised by the Board

Subject to the provisions and limitations of the California Nonprofit Corporation Law and all other applicable laws, the Corporation's activities and affairs shall be managed, and all corporate powers shall be exercised by or under the direction of the Board.

Without prejudice to the general powers set forth in these Bylaws but subject to the same limitation, the Directors shall have the power to:

- 1. Appoint and remove, at the pleasure of the Board, all the Corporation's Officers, agents, employees and volunteers; prescribe powers and duties for them that are consistent with law, with the Articles of Incorporation, and with these Bylaws; fix their compensation, if any; and require from them security for faithful performance of their duties.
- 2. Change the principal office or the principal business office from one location to another in the County of Riverside; and designate any place within the County of Riverside for holding any meeting.
- 3. Adopt and use a corporate seal and alter the forms of the seal from time to time as the Board may deem appropriate.
- 4. Enter into such contracts, ventures, associations or other arrangements as may be necessary or convenient to carry out the purposes of the Corporation.
- 5. Borrow money and incur indebtedness on behalf of the Corporation and cause to be executed and delivered for the Corporation's purposes, in the corporate name, promissory notes, bonds, debentures, deeds of trust, mortgages, pledges, hypothecations, and other evidences of debt and securities.
- 6. Receive, hold, invest, donate, transfer and administer real and personal property for the benefit of the Corporation and its purposes to the extent consistent with Section 501(c) (3) of the Internal Revenue Code and Section 509(a) (2) of the Internal Revenue Code.
- 7. Undertake all activities lawfully open to nonprofit corporations organized under the California Nonprofit Corporation Law, subject to any restrictions or conditions stated elsewhere in these Bylaws, to the extent

Updated 11/20/2017

Page 3 of 16

such activities may be conducted by organizations organized and operated exclusively for charitable purposes as described in Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code.

8. Do everything necessary, proper, advisable and convenient for the accomplishment of the purposes set forth above, and to do all other things incidental thereto or connected therewith which are not forbidden by the Internal Revenue Code, the Corporations Code, the Articles of Incorporation, these Bylaws or any other applicable law or regulation.

The Board may delegate the management of the activities of the Corporation to any person or persons, management company or committee however composed, provided that the activities and affairs of the Corporation shall be managed and all corporate powers shall be exercised under the ultimate direction of the Board.

Section 7.2 <u>Number and Qualification of Directors</u>

The authorized number of Directors shall be five (5), who shall be comprised of the Chairperson of the Riverside County Workforce Development Board, the Vice Chairperson of the Riverside County Workforce Development Board, and three additional members who shall be selected based on the current needs of the Corporation and appointed by mutual agreement of the Assistant County Executive Officer for the Riverside County Economic Development Agency and the Executive Director of the Riverside County Workforce Development Board.

Section 7.3 Election, Designation and Term of Office

The three Directors who are appointed by the Assistant County Executive Officer for the Riverside County Economic Development Agency and the Executive Director of the Riverside County Workforce Development Board shall each serve for two-year terms. The terms of the Corporation's other two Directors shall be concurrent with their respective terms as Chairperson or Vice Chairperson of the Riverside County Workforce Development Board.

Section 7.4 Vacancies on Board

A vacancy or vacancies on the Board of any of the three Director positions that are appointed by the Assistant County Executive Officer for the Riverside County Economic Development Agency and the Executive Director of the Riverside County Workforce Development Board shall be filled by appointment by mutual agreement of the Assistant County Executive Officer for the Riverside County Economic Development Agency and the Executive Director of the Riverside County Workforce Development Board. A vacancy or vacancies on the Board of the Corporation's other two Directors shall be filled in the same manner and process as such vacancies are filled for the Riverside County Workforce Development Board.

Updated 11/20/2017

Page 4 of 16

Section 7.5 Removal

The Board may by resolution declare vacant the office of a Director who has been declared of unsound mind by an order of court, or convicted of a felony, or found by final order or judgment of any court to have breached a duty under California Nonprofit Corporation Law. The Board may, by a majority vote of the Directors currently in office, declare vacant the office of any Director who fails or ceases to meet any required qualification that was in effect at the beginning of that Director's current term of office. Directors may be removed without cause by a vote of the majority of Directors currently in office.

Section 7.6 Reduction of Number of Directors

No reduction of the authorized number of Directors shall have the effect of removing any Director before that Director's term of office expires unless the reduction also provides for the removal of that specified Director in accordance with these Bylaws and the California Nonprofit Corporation Law.

Section 7.7 <u>Meetings</u>

7.7.1 Place of Meeting

The Board shall hold meetings at any place within Riverside County, California that has been designated by resolution of the Board or in the Notice of the Meeting or, if not so designated, at the Riverside County Workforce Development Center, 1325 Spruce Street, Riverside California. The Corporation may hold its meetings at such other locations as the Corporation may from time to time designate by resolution, in the order of adjournment, or notice of call of any special meeting. Meetings of the Board of Directors shall be in the manner provided in the Ralph M. Brown Act (Government Code Section 54940, et seq., as such sections now exist or may be hereafter amended; "Brown Act").

7.7.2 Regular meetings

The Board shall hold regular meetings semi-annually on a date and at a time specified by the Board in the manner provided in the Brown Act. One such meeting shall occur during the spring of each year and another such meeting shall occur during the fall of each year.

7.7.3 Special Meetings

Special Meetings of the Board for any purpose may be called at any time by the Chairperson of the Board, or by a majority of the members of the Board in the manner provided for in the Brown Act.

7.7.4 <u>Meetings to be Open and Public</u>

All of the Corporation's Board meetings, defined as any congregation of a majority of the Board members to hear, discuss, deliberate, or take action on any item concerning the Corporation, shall be open to the public and noticed

Updated 11/20/2017

Page 5 of 16

to the extent required by law, including but not limited to, the provisions of the Brown Act.

7.7.5 Closed Session

Nothing contained in these Bylaws shall be construed to prevent the Board from holding closed sessions during a regular or special meeting concerning any matter permitted by law to be considered in a closed session. All closed session meetings and notice thereof shall be conducted in the manner provided for in the Brown Act.

7.7.6 Emergency Meetings

Nothing contained in these Bylaws shall be construed to prevent the Board from holding an emergency meeting when prompt action is needed due to the actual or threatened disruption of public facilities. An emergency situation exists if the Board determines that a work stoppage, crippling disaster, or other activity may endanger public health, safety or both. All emergency meetings and notice thereof shall be conducted in the manner provided for in the Brown Act.

7.7.7 Public Hearings

All public hearings held by the Board shall be held during regular or special meetings of the Corporation.

7.7.8 Order of Business

The Board may establish the general order of business at Board meetings. At any meeting, the Board may, by vote of a majority of the Board members present, change the order of business.

7.7.9 Agenda

An agenda for the Board meetings must be posted at least 72 hours before a regular meeting in a location freely accessible to members of the public, in accordance with the Brown Act. It shall state the meeting time and place and must contain a brief general description of each item of business to be transacted or discussed at the meeting, including items to be discussed in closed session.

Section 7.8 Quorum

A majority of the Directors currently in office shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business at any meeting of the Board, except to adjourn, unless the presence of a greater number is required by law, in which event the quorum shall be such number as the law requires. Every action taken or decision made by a majority of Directors present at a duly held meeting at which a quorum is present shall be the act of the Board, subject to the more stringent provisions of California Nonprofit Corporation Law, including, without limitation those provisions related to:

Page 6 of 16

- 1. Approval of contracts or transactions in which a Director has a direct or indirect material financial interest;
- 2. Approval of certain transactions between corporations having common directorships;
- 3. Creation of an appointment to Committees of the Board; and
- 4. Indemnification of Directors.

A meeting at which a quorum is initially present may continue to transact business, despite the withdrawal of Directors, if any action taken or decision made is approved by at least a majority of the required quorum for that meeting.

Section 7.9 Adjournment

A majority of the directors present, whether or not a quorum is present, may adjourn any meeting to another time and place. In adjourning any meeting, there shall be compliance with all procedures of the Brown Act, including, but not limited to, providing notice of the adjournment by posting a copy of the order of adjournment at or near the door of the place where the meeting was held, within 24 hours after the adjournment.

Section 7.10 <u>Compensation and Reimbursement</u>

Directors and members of such standing committees as are created may receive such compensation, if any, whether serving as Directors or Officers, and such reimbursement of expenses, as the Board may determine by resolution to be just and reasonable as to the Corporation at the time that the resolution is adopted so long as it is consistent with federal, state and local law.

ARTICLE 8 COMMITTEES

Section 8.1 <u>Committees of the Board</u>

The Board may, by resolution adopted by a majority of the Directors then in office, provided a quorum is present, create one or more Committee(s) of the Board, each consisting of two or more Directors to serve at the pleasure of the Board.

Section 8.2 <u>Composition of Committees of the Board</u>

Only Directors may be appointed to the Committee(s) of the Board. Appointments to the Committee(s) of the Board shall be by majority vote of the Directors currently in office. The Board may appoint one or more Directors as alternate members of any such Committee(s), who may replace any absent member at any meeting.

Updated 11/20/2017

Page 7 of 16

Section 8.3 Powers Exercised by Committees of the Board

Any such Committee(s), to the extent provided in the Board resolution, shall have all the authority of the Board, except that no Committee(s) of the Board, regardless of Board resolution, may:

- 1. Fill vacancies on the Board or on any Committee(s) of the Board that has the authority of the Board;
- 2. Fix compensation of the Directors for serving on the Board or on any Committee(s) of the Board;
- 3. Amend or repeal Bylaws or adopt new Bylaws;
- 4. Amend or repeal any resolution of the Board that by its expressed terms is not so amendable or repealable;
- 5. Create any other Committees of the Board or appoint the members of Committees of the Board;
- 6. Approve any contract or any transaction:
 - a) between the Corporation and one or more of its Directors; or
 - b) to which the Corporation is a party and in which one or more of its Directors has a material financial interest, except as special approval is provided for in Section 5233 (d) (3) of the Corporations Code.

Section 8.4 <u>Meetings and Action of Committees</u>

Meetings and actions of Committee(s) of the Board shall be governed by, held, and taken in accordance with the provisions of these Bylaws concerning meetings and other Board actions, except that the time for regular meetings of such Committee(s) and the calling of special meetings of such Committee(s) may be determined either by Board resolution or, if there is none, by resolution of the Committee(s) of the Board. Minutes of each meeting of any Committee(s) of the Board shall be kept and shall be filed with the corporate records. The Board may adopt rules for the government of any such Committee(s), provided they are consistent with these Bylaws or, in the absence of rules adopted by the Board, the Committee(s) may adopt such rules.

Section 8.5 <u>Advisory Committees</u>

If the Board shall appoint any Committee(s) which has as a member any non-Director, it is not a "Committee of the Board", and it should be clearly labeled an "Advisory Committee". All actions and recommendations of an Advisory Committee shall require ratification by the Board before being given effect.

Updated 11/20/2017

Page 8 of 16

The Board may not delegate any element of management of the Corporation's activities to an Advisory Committee.

ARTICLE 9 OFFICERS

Section 9.1

Officers of the Corporation

The officers of the Corporation ("Officers") shall be a Chairperson, a Vice Chairperson, a Chief Executive Officer, Chief Operating Officer, a Secretary and a Treasurer. The Board shall have the power to appoint, and may authorize an Officer to appoint, additional Officers with such duties, powers, titles and privileges as the Board may fix. Any number of offices may be held by the same person, except that the no person serving as Secretary or Treasurer may serve concurrently as the Chairperson of the Board.

Section 9.2 <u>Election, Designation and Term of Office</u>

The Chairperson of the Riverside County Workforce Development Board shall serve as the Chairperson of the Corporation's Board of Directors. The Vice Chairperson of the Riverside County Workforce Development Board shall serve as the Vice Chairperson of the Corporation's Board of Directors. The Assistant County Executive Officer for the Riverside County Economic Development Agency shall serve as the Chief Executive Officer of the Corporation. The Executive Director of the Riverside County Workforce Development Board shall serve as the Chief Operating Officer of the Corporation. The Deputy Director of the Riverside County Workforce Development Board shall serve as the Secretary of the Corporation. The Managing Director of the Riverside County Economic Development Agency shall serve as the Treasurer of the Corporation. All Officers' terms shall be concurrent with their corresponding terms with the Riverside County Workforce Development Board or Riverside County Economic Development Agency, as applicable.

Section 9.3 <u>Vacancies</u>

A vacancy in any office shall be filled in the manner prescribed in these Bylaws for regular appointments to that office, provided that such vacancies shall be filled as they occur.

Section 9.4 Removal

Subject to the rights, if any, of an Officer under any contract of employment, any Officer may be removed concurrent with their removal from their corresponding position at the Riverside County Workforce Development Board or Riverside County Economic Development Agency, as applicable.

Section 9.5 Responsibilities of Officers

9.5.1 Responsibilities of Chairperson of the Board

The Chairperson of the Board shall be a Director, shall preside at meetings of the Board and shall exercise and perform such other powers and duties as the

Updated 11/20/2017

Page 9 of 16

s:\department\housing\wdcs non-profit\bylaws\bylaws- amended and restated 11-20-17.docx

Board may assign from time to time. The Chairperson shall sign contracts, deeds and other instruments made by the Corporation and authorized by the Board.

9.5.2 <u>Responsibilities of the Vice Chairperson of the Board</u>

The Vice Chairperson of the Board shall be a Director and shall perform the duties of the Chairperson in the absence of the Chairperson.

9.5.3 <u>Responsibilities of the Chief Executive Officer</u>

The Chief Executive Officer shall be the general manager of the Corporation and, subject to the control of the Board, shall have general supervision over the administration of the Corporation's business and operations. The Chief Executive Officer shall be empowered to supervise all of the employees of the Corporation, under such terms and having such job responsibilities as the Chief Executive Officer shall determine in his or her sole discretion, subject to the rights, if any, of the employee under any contract of employment. The Chief Executive Officer shall be delegated signing authority by the Board as set forth by resolution of the Board. The Chief Executive Officer may delegate his or her responsibilities and powers subject to the control of the Board. He or she shall have such other powers and duties as may be prescribed by the Board or these Bylaws.

9.5.4 <u>Responsibilities of the Chief Operating Officer</u>

The Chief Operating Officer shall assist in the general supervision and administration of the day to day business and affairs of the Corporation, subject to the direction of the Chief Executive Officer. The Chief Operating Officer shall be authorized to seek funding opportunities such as grants and proposals and shall be delegated signing authority by the Board as set forth by resolution of the Board. The Chief Operating Officer may delegate his or her responsibilities and powers subject to the control of the Board. He or she shall have such other powers and duties as may be prescribed by the Board or these Bylaws.

9.5.5 Responsibilities of the Secretary

The Secretary shall be delegated signing authority by the Board as set forth by resolution of the Board and may delegate his or her responsibilities and powers subject to the control of the Board. The Secretary shall keep or cause to be kept, at the principal office of the Corporation or such other place as the Board may direct:

- 1. The original or a copy of these Bylaws, certified by the Secretary and as amended to date.
- 2. A copy of the Articles of Incorporation, as amended to date.

Updated 11/20/2017

3. A book of minutes of all meetings, proceedings, and actions of the Board and Committee(s) of the Board.

The Secretary shall keep the Corporate Seal in safe custody and shall have such other powers and perform such other duties as the Board or these Bylaws may prescribe.

9.5.6 <u>Responsibilities of the Treasurer</u>

The Treasurer shall keep and maintain, or cause to be kept and maintained, adequate and correct books and accounts of the Corporation's properties and transactions. The Treasurer shall prepare, or cause to be prepared, and certify, or cause to be certified, the financial statements to be included in any required reports. The Treasurer shall send or cause to be given to the Directors such financial statements and reports as are required to be given by law, by these Bylaws, or by the Board

The Treasurer shall be delegated signing authority by the Board as set forth by resolution of the Board and may delegate his or her responsibilities and powers subject to the control of the Board.

The Treasurer shall deposit or cause to be deposited all money and other valuables in the name and to the credit of the Corporation with such depositories as the Board may designate, shall disburse the Corporation's funds as the Board may order, shall render to the Board, when requested, an account of all transactions and an account of the financial condition of the Corporation, and shall have such other powers and perform such other duties as the Board or these Bylaws may prescribe.

If required by the Board, the Treasurer shall give the Corporation a bond in the amount and with the surety or sureties specified by the Board for faithful performance of the duties of the office and for restoration to the Corporation of all of its books, papers, vouchers, money and other property of every kind in the possession or under the control of the Treasurer on his or her death, resignation, retirement or removal from office.

ARTICLE 10 ADDITIONAL PERSONNEL

Section 10.1

Clerk of the Board

The Secretary of the Riverside County Workforce Development Board shall serve as the Clerk of the Board for the Corporation. The Clerk of the Board shall give, or cause to be given, notice of all meetings of the Board and Committees of the Board required by these Bylaws to be given. The Clerk of the Board, or designee, shall certify meeting minutes as these Bylaws prescribe and in the manner provided in the Brown Act. The Clerk of the Board shall also serve as the Corporation's Filing Officer for Form 700 Statements of Economic Interest.

Updated 11/20/2017

Page 11 of 16

Section 10.2 General Counsel

General Counsel shall be appointed by the Board from the office of County Counsel of the County of Riverside ("County Counsel"). General Counsel shall be responsible for review and/or preparation of all proposed resolutions, rules, contracts and all other legal actions of the Corporation. He or she shall give advice or opinion in writing to the Officers and/or Board whenever required or requested to do so. He or she shall attend to lawsuits and other matters to which the Corporation is a party or in which the Corporation may be legally interested and do such other things as the Board may require. General Counsel, or designee, shall record and maintain safe custody of minutes of closed session meetings as these Bylaws prescribe and in the manner provided in the Brown Act.

The extent and nature of such services shall be set forth in a contract between the Corporation and County Counsel establishing certain Corporation/County Counsel relationships.

Section 10.3 <u>Additional Personnel</u>

The day-to-day services required by the Corporation are to be rendered by employees of the County of Riverside Workforce Development Center ("WDC"). The extent and nature of such services shall be set forth in a contract between the Corporation and the WDC.

Section 10.4 <u>Agents, Consultants and Volunteers</u>

In addition to the use of WDC employees, the Board may from time-to-time establish such positions and select and appoint such agents, consultants and volunteers, regular and temporary, as it may require and determine their qualifications, duties and compensation.

The Board may, from time-to-time appoint or employ such personnel as it deems necessary to exercise its powers, duties and functions as prescribed by state and federal statutes applicable thereto. The selection, duties and compensation of such personnel shall be determined by the Board, subject to the laws of the State of California.

ARTICLE 11 INDEMNIFICATION

Section 11.1 Right of Indemnity

To the fullest extent permitted by law, this Corporation shall indemnify its Directors, Officers, employees, and other people described in Section 5238 (a) of the Corporations Code, including people formally occupying any such position, against all expenses, judgments, fines, settlements and other amounts actually and reasonably incurred by them in connection with any proceeding by reason of the fact that the person is or was an agent of the corporation. The indemnification shall include an action by or in the right of the Corporation,

Updated 11/20/2017

Page 12 of 16

by reason of the fact that the person is or was a person described in that section of the Corporations Code.

The terms "expenses", "proceeding" and "agent" as used in these Bylaws shall have the same meaning as in Section 5238 (a) of the Corporations Code.

Section 11.2 <u>Approval of Indemnity</u>

On written request to the Board by any person seeking indemnification under Sections 5238 (b) or 5238 (c) of the Corporations Code, the Board shall promptly determine under Section 5238 (e) whether the applicable standard of conduct set forth in Sections 5238 (b) or 5238 (c) has been met. If so, the Board shall authorize indemnification. If the Board cannot authorize indemnification because the number of Directors who are parties to the proceeding with respect to which indemnification is sought prevents the formation of a quorum of Directors who are not parties to that proceeding, the Board shall promptly refer the question to the Riverside County Board of Supervisors. The Riverside County Board of Supervisors shall determine under Section 5238 (e) whether the applicable standard of conduct set forth in Section 5238 (b) or 5238 (c) has been met and, if so, the Riverside County Board of Supervisors shall authorize indemnification.

Section 11.3 <u>Advancement of Expenses</u>

To the fullest extent permitted by law and except as otherwise determined by the Board in a specific instance, expenses incurred in defending any proceeding may be advanced by the Corporation before final disposition of the proceeding on receipt by the Corporation of an undertaking by or on behalf of that agent to repay the amount of that advance unless it is ultimately determined that the agent is entitled to be indemnified by the Corporation for those expenses.

Section 11.4 Insurance

The Corporation shall have the right to purchase and maintain insurance to the full extent permitted by law on behalf of its Officers, Directors, employees and other agents, against any liability asserted against or incurred by any of them in such capacity or arising out of their status as such.

ARTICLE 12 RECORDS AND REPORTS

Section 12.1 Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws

The Corporation shall keep at its principal office, the original or a copy of the Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws as amended to date.

Section 12.2 Books and Records of Account

The Corporation shall keep adequate and correct books and records of account. Such books and records shall include, but are not necessarily limited to: accounts of properties and transactions, and corporate assets, liabilities,

Updated 11/20/2017

Page 13 of 16

s:\department\housing\wdcs non-profit\bylaws\bylaws- amended and restated 11-20-17.docx

receipts, disbursements, gains, and losses. The books of account shall be open to inspection by any Director at all reasonable times.

Section 12.3 <u>Annual Report</u>

The Board shall cause an Annual Report to be sent to each Director within 120 days after the end of the Corporation's fiscal year. The Annual Report shall contain the following information in appropriate detail:

- 1. The assets and liabilities, including trust funds, of the Corporation at of the end of the fiscal year.
- 2. The principal changes in assets and liabilities, including trust funds, during the fiscal year.
- 3. The revenue or receipts of the Corporation, both unrestricted and restricted to particular purposes, during the fiscal year.
- 4. The expenses or disbursements of the Corporation, for both general and restricted purposes, during the fiscal year.
- 5. Any additional information required by this Article of these Bylaws or at the request of the Board.

The Annual Report shall be accompanied by a report (if any) of independent accountants, or if there is no such report, by the certificate of an authorized Officer of the Corporation that such statements were prepared without audit from the Corporation's books and records.

This requirement of an Annual Report shall not apply if the Corporation receives less than \$25,000 in gross receipts during the fiscal year, provided, however, that the information specified above for inclusion in an Annual Report must be furnished annually to all Directors.

Section 12.4 <u>Annual Statement of Certain Transactions and Indemnifications</u>

As part of the Annual Report, a statement of any transaction for indemnification of the following kind shall be prepared and furnished to each Director:

- 1. Any transaction:
 - a) in which the Corporation participated;
 - b) in which a Director or Officer of the Corporation had a direct or indirect material financial interest; and

Updated 11/20/2017

Page 14 of 16

c) which involved more than \$50,000, or was one of a number of transactions with the same interested person involving in the aggregate more than \$50,000.

The statement shall include a brief description of the transaction, the names of the interested people involved, their relationship to the Corporation, the nature of their interest in the transaction and, if practicable, the amount of that interest, provided that if the transaction was with the partnership in which the interested person is a partner, only the interest of the partnership need be stated.

2. Any indemnifications or advances aggregating more than \$10,000 paid during the fiscal year to any officer or Director of the Corporation under these Bylaws, unless that indemnification has already been approved by the Riverside County Board of Supervisors.

Section 12.5 Meeting Minutes

The Corporation shall keep a minute book in written form which shall contain a record of all actions of the proceedings of the Board or any Committees of the Board including:

- 1. The time, date and place of each meeting;
- 2. Whether a meeting is regular or special and, if special, how authorized;
- 3. The manner of giving notice of each meeting and a copy thereof;
- 4. The names of those present at each meeting;
- 5. The minutes of all meetings;
- 6. Any written waivers of notice, consents to the holding of a meeting or approvals of the minutes thereof;
- 7. All protests concerning lack of notice; and
- 8. Formal dissents from Board actions.

Copies of Board meeting minutes that are duly certified by the Clerk of the Board, or designee, as being correct shall serve as proof of actions of the Corporation.

ARTICLE 13 CONSTRUCTION AND DEFINITIONS

Unless the context requires otherwise, the general provisions, rules of construction and definitions in the California Nonprofit Corporation Law shall

Updated 11/20/2017

Page 15 of 16

govern the construction of these Bylaws. Without limiting the generality of the preceding sentence, indication of gender shall include all genders and indication of numbers shall include singular and plural, and the term person shall include both a legal entity and a natural person.

ARTICLE 14 AMENDMENTS

The Board may adopt, amend, or repeal these Bylaws. Such power is subject to the following limitations:

- 1. The Board may not extend the term of a Director beyond that for which the Director was appointed.
- 2. The Board may not, without the approval of the Riverside County Board of Supervisors, specify or change any Bylaw provision which would:
 - a) fix or change the authorized number of Directors,
 - b) fix or change the minimum or maximum number of Directors, or
 - c) change from a fixed number of Directors to a variable number of Directors or vice versa.
- 3. If any provision of these Bylaws requires the vote of a larger proportion of the Board than is otherwise required by law, that provision may not be altered, amended, or repealed except by that greater vote.

CERTIFICATE OF SECRETARY

I certify that I am the duly appointed and acting Secretary of Riverside County Works, a California Non-Profit Public Benefit Corporation, that the above Bylaws, consisting of 16 pages, are the Bylaws of this Corporation as adopted by the Board of Directors on November 20, 2017 and that they have not been amended or modified since that date.

Executed on April 9, 2020 at Riverside, California.

Leslie Trainor, Secretary